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81
50
US IGA 100
CRS US IGA AEOI
US IGA CRS AEOI
AEOI TIA us
1GA CRS
AEOI
AEOI
AEOI
CRS
US IGA
US 1GA GIIN
IRS TIA
TIA CRS
TIA
CRS
TIA
IRS TIA
US IGA AEOI FATCA
FATCA
FATCA

FATCA FATCA
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2022
62,809,323 100.09
54,996 0.09
62,754,327
100.00
( 9,087 )
2022
19,813,358 100.48
94,161 0.48
19,719,197
100.00
( 1,857 )
2022
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
0.58 2024/ /25 67,872,620 67,495,711 62,809,323 100.09
LIMITED REGD MTN
2022
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
LIMITED /AUD/ REGD 0.565 2024/ /25 21,505,870 21,156,314 19,813,358 100.48
MTN

2022

2022
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2022
2020 151,014,338 21,868 10.23 1,481
2021 115,368,357 16,706 10.16 1,471
2022 71,985,095 10,424 9.47 1,371
2021 10 90,451,326 13,098 9.89 1,432
11 87,954,255 12,737 9.89 1,432
12 85,191,560 12,337 9.88 1,431
2022 82,714,319 11,978 9.76 1,413
78,944,269 11,432 9.69 1,403
76,528,536 11,082 9.52 1,379
73,705,618 10,673 9.45 1,368
71,985,095 10,424 9.47 1,371
68,401,522 9,905 9.39 1,360
66,816,230 9,676 9.45 1,368
65,408,565 9,472 9.33 1,351
62,754,327 9,087 9.25 1,339
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2020 45,029,308 4,240 9.70 913
2021 35,592,659 3,352 9.93 935
2022 24,831,115 2,338 9.28 874
2021 10 28,964,497 2,728 9.59 903
11 28,886,273 2,720 9.65 909
12 28,503,050 2,684 9.70 913
2022 27,795,846 2,618 9.65 909
27,504,827 2,590 9.57 901
26,575,935 2,503 9.41 886
25,251,039 2,378 9.31 877
24,831,115 2,338 9.28 874
22,627,241 2,131 9.20 866
21,092,502 1,986 9.33 879
20,654,372 1,945 9.21 867
19,719,197 1,857 9.17 864
)

2.30

0.68

6.79

)

3.00

2.37

6.55

100x%

10.00 10.00
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15,401,295.032
15,401,295.032

640,110.472
640,110.472

14,761,184.560
14,761,184.560

0.000
0.000

3,409,215.408
3,409,215.408

11,351,969.152
11,351,969.152

0.000
0.000

3,746,835.705
3,746,835.705

7,605,133.447
7,605,133.447

4,700,719.564
4,700,719.564

56,131.065
56,131.065

4,644 ,588.499
4,644,588.499

0.000
0.000

1,059,349.659
1,059,349.659

3,585,238.840
3,585,238.840

0.000
0.000

908,794.369
908,794.369

2,676,444.471
2,676,444.471
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10

0.01
0.01
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1909

131

23 103

2022 30
144 81
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2022

31

1909

2022 31

75,559,800 72,059,924 10,434,998
1,088,440 157,617
244,551 35,413
101,840 14,747
6,654 964
12,749 1,846
73,514,158 10,645,585
108,856 15,763
95,405 13,816
59,318 8,590
35,688 5,168
18,330 2,654
16,944 2,454
5,000 724
3,708 537
5,579 808
348,828 50,514
73,165,330 10,595,071

7,605,133
9.62 1,393
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1909

2022 31

776,945 112,509
776,945 112,509
508,767 73,675
100,000 14,481

79,855 11,564
50,168 7,265
22,416 3,246
15,000 2,172
8,942 1,295
785,148 113,697
(8,203) (1,188)
61,214 8,864
(1,577) (228)
59,637 8,636
(6,276,981) (908,970)
(676) (98)
(6,277,657) (909,068)
(6,218,020) (900,431)

(6,226,223) (901, 619)
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(8,203)
59,637
(6,277,657)

(1,188)
8,636
(909,068)

(6,226,223)

(901, 619)

(37,236,498)

(5,392,217)

(43,462,721)

116,628,051

(6,293,837)

16,888,908

73,165,330

10,595,071

(3,746,836)

(3,746,836)

(37,236,498)

(5,392,217)

(37,236,498)

(5.392,217)
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1909

2022 31

(6,226,223) (901, 619)
37,223,529 5,390,339
(61,214) (8,864)
6,276,981 908,970
(253,371) (36,691)
670,645 97,116
(2,402) (348)
(12,749) (1,846)
(12,053) (1,745)
5,000 724
45,893 6,646
(22,233) (3,220)
28,622 4,145
8,219 1,190
208 30
5,579 808
37,674,431 5,455,634
(37,905,982) (5.489,165)
(37,905,982) (5,489,165)
(231,551) (33,531)
1,564,542 226,561
1,332,991 193,030
2022 31
1,088,440 157,617
244,551 35,413

1,332,991 193,030
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10.27 1,487
(0.00) )
(0.65) (94)
(0.65) (94)
9.62 1,393
(6.33)
0.87
(0.01)
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31

BBH

2021 12

1909

1909

2019 30

2021

100

BBH

2022
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2019

10 EQ

CSC
CSC



GAAP

GAAP

ASC

FASB ASC

GAAP

820

946
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2022 31
2022
31
$ $ $ 72,059,924 $ 72,059,924
2022 31
$ 37,162,315 $ $
$ 37,162,315 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA ADG Limited MA Crabel Limited MA GCI Limited MA

Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
JGB
GSI

2022 31
2.34
2022 31
0.12
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2022 31

2022 31
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31

FASB ASC 740

2022 31

2022 31

0.01
2022
2022
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more likely than not

50

31
31

4
0.04

,166

2022



0.015
31

15,000

100,000

2022

31

2022
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2022
2022 31
7,500
2022 31
31
60,000
0.08
65,000
2022 31
0.53
2022 31
2022 31
0.01
2022 31

2022 31
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2022 11
8,917,518
MA WCM LP Ltd
NAV
NAV
NAV

NAV
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2022 31
NAV 71,985,095
36,941
51,967
1,091,327
NAV 73,165,330
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1909
2022 31

98.5

98.5
76,052,690 Signum Millenia 11, Ltd.5.8% due 9/25/24 72,059,924
75,559,800 72,059,924
75,559,800 72,059,924
75,559,800 72,059,924
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2022
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Aggets

Irvestmeants, at far value (oost $75.559,800)

Cash
Cash denominated in foreign cumenciss
Recsivables for
Investments sold
interest
Other assels
Total assets

Liabilities

Payables for
Units repurchased
Distnbutor fass
Professional feas
Arcounting and administrative fees
Pnanting faes
Management fees
Custody fees
Agent company fess
Ciher liabikties
Total liabilities

Met assets

Units outstanding
Class UsD

Met asset value per unit
Class UsD

72,059,924
1,088,440
244 551

101,840
G654
12,749

73,514,158

108 556
95,405
59218
I E8E
18,330
16,944

5,000
3,708
5579

348828

73165330

7805133

9.62

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended May 31, 2022

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Investment income

interast inoome i 776,045
Total investment income 76945
Expenses
Distabutor feas £08,T67
Management faes 100,000
Accounting and administratve fees 79,855
Professional feas 50,168
Custody fees 22416
Trustes fess 15,000
Agent company fees 942
Total expenses 785,148
Met investment loss {8,203}

REALISED AND UNREALISED GAINALOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND
FOREIGN CURREMNCY:
Realised gainfloss) on:

Investments in securdies 61,214

Foreign cumency transactions {1.577)

Met realised gain 50 637
Met change in unrealised appreciation/{depreciation) from:

investments in secuntias 16, 276,981)

Foreign cumency transactions [GTE)

Met change in unrealised depreciation {6 277 657)
Met logs from Investments and forelgn currency {6 218 020}
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations - 16 226 273}

The accompany ing noles are an integral part of these financial statements,
5
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended May 31, 2022

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Met increasef{decrease) in net assets resulting from operations:

Met investment koss % (B,203)
et reglised gain 50, 637
Met change in unrealised deprecialion (6,277 B57)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations (8,226 223)
Met decréase in net assels resulting from fund unit transactions {37, 236 498)
Met decreass in net assets (43,462 721)
Met assets
Beginring of year 116 628 051
End of year F 73165330

Transactions in units for the year endad May 31, 2022 ane as follows.

Fund unit transactions

Units Redesmed (3,746, 836)
Total units redeemed {3 746 836)
Amounts Redeemead £ (37,236.498)
Total amount redeemed ] (37 236 498)

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
(4]
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended May 31, 2022
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{Expressed in United States Dollars)
Cash flows from optra:ling activities:
Mat decreass in net assels resulting from operabions

Adjustments to raconcile nat decrease in net ascels rosulting from
aparabons to net cash providad by operating actiibes
Procesds from sale of imvestments
Realised gain on rwestments in securties
Change in unrealised depreciabon on rvestments in secunties
Met accration of discount on investiment secunties
Changes m recenvables for
Imvestments sacurties sold
Interest
Othar assals
Changes in payables for
Professional fees
Custody fees
Detnbutor feas
Prnting taes
Apcounting and administrateve fees
Management fees
Agant company fees
Other liabilties
Met cash provided by operating activibies

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on redemption of units
Met cash usedin financing activities

Mat decreace in cash and cash equvalents

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of vear
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

At May 31, 2022 the amounts Included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash
Cash danominatad in foréign curmanciss
e to custadian

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

(6,236 223}

37223529
{61,214}
6,276,981
(253 371}

£70,645
(2.402)
{12,749)

{12,053}
5000
45893
[22.233)
28,622
8219
208
L5579

37674431

{37,905 ,982)

{37,905 982)

(231,551}

1,564 542

1,332,981

1,068,440
744,551

1,232,891

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
T
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Highlights
For the Year Ended May 31, 2022
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{Expressed in United States Dollars)

Per-unit operating performance:

Met asset value, beginning of year

Met irnvestment loss’

Met loss from investments and foraign currency
Total loss from investment operations

Met asset value, end of year

Total return®
Ratios to average net assets:”

Ratio of expenses to average nel assets
Ratio of net investment l0ss to average net asseals

' Calculeted based on average unds culstanding duning the wear

10.27

(0.00)
(065

{0.65]

962

(6,33 )%

0.87%
[0.01)%

 Uritholder's retum and ratios may vary from the retum and raticos presented due to the iming of capital transactions

The accompany ing noles are an integral part of these financial statements,

8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust™ is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 20019, and commenced operations on September 30, 2019,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited and 1Q) EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual find under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a net asset
value per unit on the maturity date being not less than 100%% of the issue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the issue of Units in 5 Year USD Performance Linked Notes to be issued by Signum Millenia 1T Limitesd.

Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust's custodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Administrator’”). Such duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entiry.

BEH has entered into an agreement with State Street Corporation ("State Street”) under which State Street will
acquire BEBH's Investor Services business; which includes its custody, fund accounting and admmistration, transter
agency, depositary, foreign exchange, trustee and securities lending services. The transaction is expected to be
completed in due course, subject to custormary closing conditions and regulatory approvals,

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC™) announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recormmended public offer for all issued and oulstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust. C8C and
Intertrust anticipate that the transaction will close in the second half of 2022, subject to customary closing conditions
and regulatory approvals.

Investors are able to subscribe into a single class of units; United States Dollar.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America ("US GAAP™) applicable to financial reporting and are stated m United
States Dollar (“£° or “USD™) rounded to the nearest USD,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

The Series Trust 15 an mvestment company and accordingly follows the mvestmen! company accountmg and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASE™ Accounting Standards Codification
(ASCT) Topic 946 Financial Services — Investment Companies.

The following is a swnmary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
statements.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalenis, Cash balances are normally held in accounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents,

(B) Valuation. FASE ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements),

The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

* Level 1 - Fair value measurements derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

+  Level 2 — Fair value measuranents denived from nputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (iLe. derived
fromm prices); and

+  Level 3 - Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or ligbility that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2022,

(Unadjusted)
Cueted Prices
i et Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Obs ervable Unabservable
It erts Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
Ll 1) Ll 2) Ll ) May 31, 2022
Performance Linked Notes 3 - 3 - F  T2059.924 3 T2059.924

*  For fusther information on categories of securities refer to the Schedule of Investmenis.

The following is a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant unobservable nputs (Level
3) for the Series Trust during the year ended May 31, 2022, as applicable:

Transfers into Transfers out of
Investmant in Securities Sales at cost Laved 2 Laval 3
Ferfarmanc e Linked Hotes ¥ 37162315 § % ]
Total Investments H ATABZNE 5 = 3

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Caleulation Agent at each NAV date. The MNotes are exposed to a
Ficed Portion and an Active Portion. The Fixed Portion is structured through currency swap transactions that
exchange Japanese Yen (“JPY™") for Japanese Government Bonds (“JGBs™) and the currency of denomination of the
Series Trust (USD). The Active Portion aims to generate excess retum based on the performance of the Strategy
through the call option transaction between the Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs International (“GSI™). On the initial
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

closing date of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a discount Lo its face value which is the value on
maturity and matches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discount is used to provide against the fixed
costs over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion. The Active Portion provides, through the
call option transaction, a notional exposure Lo four strategies, MA ADG Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCI Ltd and MA
MNiederhoffer Smart Alpha Ltd. Should the performance of the Active Portion be positive then the Series Trust will,
subject to no default on the part of the Notes Issuer, JGBs, the backed assets or GSI, the counterparty to the currency
swap agreement, retum the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus the value of the Active Portion (the “excess
returm’”™). Should the performance of the Active Portion be negative then there will be no excess retum and the Series
Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only al maturity, The Fixed Portion is valued based on vield with valuation
inputs being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31, 2022 an increase in the yield of 1%
would result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 2.34% The Active Portion is valued based on
the strategy level, which in ftum is based on the performance of the underlying Funds. At May 31, 2022 an increase
in strategy level of 1% would result in an increase in the Note Price of 0.1 2%

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make wvaluation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
Manager., The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which s readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily comespond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument.

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realised gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis, Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date, Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes,

(D} Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting currency is United States Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which ot operates. Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the curency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, evenis
and conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrealised foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realised gains
or lesses and unrealised appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and expenses are
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of changes in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realised and
unrealised gains or losses.

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities includes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed.

{F} OfMsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offselting assels and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognised assets and liabilities. These recognised assets
and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject 1o an enforceable master
netting amrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to ancther party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust mtends to set off, and the Series Trust's right of set off s
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2022, there was no offsetting.

11
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{G) Receivables for Units Subseribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
aubzscribed in advance is caried at the iE=uance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
Mhay 31, 2022 Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2022,

{H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS
As of May 31, 2022 all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

{A) Subscription of Units. Units were available for subseription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day,
The purchase price per unit caleulated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
{each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,
Tokyo and Sydney are cpen for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded dewn to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding wall be retained by the Series Trust.

All income, expenses, realised and unrealised gains and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assets,

{B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submilted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock ecchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such ather day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of theirr mitial purchase. Repurchase requesds may be sent by electronic transmission.,

(C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrator as at the valuation point on each Valuation
Day using such pricing service provider or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time
to time, The Manager believes that the methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and
consistent, have been consistently applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value
measurement. Such prices will be treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there
were no independent verification of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in USD.

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Linit.

The Admmistrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

{I¥ Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is nol to make distributions to Unitholders.

Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realised capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the MNet
Asset Vahue,

12
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (credit risk), Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an nstitution or other entity with which the Senes Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default.
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements. Financial
assets, which potentially expose the Series Trust to credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrealised gains on derivative contracts,

(A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Unils during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchasze notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be siluations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased,

{B) No Guaranitee

An investment in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by any government, govermniment agencies o
instrumnentalities or any bank guarantee fund. Units of the Senes Trust are not depesits or obligations of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and'or down. Preservation
of principal is not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investrnent. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested,

{C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in USD. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in a comency or currency unil (including JPY) other than USD,
These include the risk that exchange rates may significantty change (including changes due to devaluation of USD
or revaluation of the investor's currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the investor's
currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the valae of the investor's
currency against USD would decrease (a) the investor's cumrency equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and MNet
Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investor's currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (if amy).

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust’s organizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemmified agamnst certan habilities that may anse out of performance of their duties o the Series Trust
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
indemmification clauses, The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under these amangements is unknown as this would
involve future claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have not vet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status, Under current Cayman Islands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position
of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related
appeals or htigation processes, based on the technical menits of the position.

13
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognised in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realised upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant taxing authority. As of May 31, 2022, there was no foreign tax expense and no
oulstanding foreign tax payvable as disclosed in the Series Trust’s Statement of Operations and Staternents of Assels
and Liabilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

(A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US54 166. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of 0.04% per annum of the Net Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the year ended May 31,
2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,

The Admmistrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears. The transfer agent fees earned by the
Administrator during the vear ended May 31, 2022 and cutstanding transfer agent fees payable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015% per anmum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears, The fees eamned by the Custodian during the vear ended May 31, 2022 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee will be entitled to receive oul of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of USS7,500 on the Initial
Closing Date, and (i1) a fixed anmual fee of USE15,000, The fees eamed by the Trustee during the year ended May
31, 2022 and outstanding fees payvable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,

(D) Management Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-oft fee of USS60,000 on the Initial Closing Date,
(ii) a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of USS100,000 per annum,
accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears, and (iii) a one-off’ fee of
UISE65,000 upon the termination of the Series Trust, The fees eamed by the Manager during the year ended May 31,
2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Armount of each class of Units, caleulated and accrued daily and payable monthly in armears. The fees earmed by the
Distributor during the vear ended May 31, 2022 and outstanding fees pavable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2022
have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, caleulated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

the Agent during the yvear ended May 31, 2022 and culstanding fees payable to the Agent Compary as of May 31,
2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: (i) govemmental
fees, (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (iii} costs of borrowing money,
including imterest expenses: (iv) extraordinary expenses, mcluding costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
anid (v) professional fees.

8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust,

The Trustee is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders,

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust, Details of
these fees are set out n Mote 7 to the financial statements.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through Novemnber 7, 2022, the date
on which these financial satements were approved for issue by the Trustee and Manager.

From June 1, 2022 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
UsD 8,917,518

On 8 September 2022 a Noteholder Consent Letter was signed to replace an undertying holding within the Note,
The notional exposure to MA ADG Lid has been replaced by a notional exposure to MA WM LP Ltd.

15
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2022

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred a expense reserve inclusive of five years
of anticipated expenses in vear 1 of the Series Trust's operations for the calculation of the NAV in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contractual fees the Series Trust will
pay over its life. Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been
adjusted through the Statement of Operations in the curment period to reflect only those costs attributable to the
current period in these financial statements.

The Series Trust incwrred organizational and set up costs, For the calculation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortised by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Staternent of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Senes Trust as per the financial statements
(“F58 NAV™), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendiz (the “Trading WAV 5 shown below,

573172022
Trading NAYV 71,985,005
Interest income 36,941
Organization expenses 51,9467
Expense reserve 1,081,327
F& MNAV 73,165,330
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments

May 31, 2022

(Expressed in Uhited States Dollars)

Prineipal X ol Nat

Ameunt  Security Descripfion Assets Eair Valus
PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES BE.8%
CAYMAN IELANDS BB 5%
Sigmurm Wilenia 1, Lid

uzh 76,082 650 5.8% due 3245724 3 12,058 Sa

TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS [Cost 3T5.559.800) $ 72,059,924
TOTAL PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES (Cost 375,659 800) 3 T2 059 924
TOTAL INVEETMENTS (Cost $T5.555,B00) 3 TZO058824

The accompany ing noles are an integral part of these financial statements,
4
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2021 31

1909
2021 31

112,468,744 115,245,849 16,688,751
1,264,453 183,105
300,152 43,465
772,485 111,864
4,252 616
117,587,191 17,027,801
63 9
778,340 112,711
71,371 10,335
49,512 7,170
40,563 5,874
8,725 1,263
7,066 1,023
3,500 507
959,140 138,893
116,628,051 16,888,908

11,351,969

10.27 1,487
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1909

2021 31

1,122,281 162,518
1,122,281 162,518
711,332 103,008
108,618 15,729
75,026 10,865
70,445 10,201
26,678 3,863
15,000 2,172
13,421 1,943
(5,523) (800)
(13,399) (1,940)
(51,970) (7,526)
949,628 137,516
172,653 25,002
947,627 137,226

29 4

947,656 137,230
(2,114,265) (306,167)
6,775 981
(2,107,490) (305, 186)
(1,159,834) (167,956)

(987,181) (142,954)
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1909

2021 31

172,653 25,002
947,656 137,230
(2,107,490) (305,186)
(987,181) (142,954)
(34,734, 296) (5,029,873)
(35,721,477) (5,172,827)
152,349,528 22,061,735
116,628,051 16,888,908

(3,409, 215)
(3,409,215)

(34,734,296) (5,029,873)
(34,734,296) (5,029,873)
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1909

2021 31

(987,181) (142,954)
34,679,911 5,021,998
(947,627) (137,226)
2,114,265 306,167
(365,805) (52,972)
(414,056) (59,959)
5,631 815
15,360 2,224
(50,983) (7,383)
(1,432) (207)
21,525 3,117
(36,625) (5,304)
(785) (114)
27 ®
(64,340) (9,317)
33,967,831 4,918,882
(34,315,194) (4,969,183)
(34,315,194) (4,969,183)
(347,363) (50,302)
1,911,905 276,863
1,564,542 226,561
2021 31
1,264,453 183,105
300,152 43,465
(63) ®
1,564,542 226,561
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1909

31

10.32 1,494
0.01 1
(0.06) [©)
(0.05) )
10.27 1,487
(0.48)
0.71
0.13
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ASC 946
FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2021 31
2021
31
$ $ $ 115,245,849 $ 115,245,849

142/318



2021

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31

$ 33,732,284 $ $
$ 33,732,284 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA ADG Limited MA Crabel Limited MA GCI Limited MA

Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited

3.33

0.16

JGB

GSI

2021 31

2021 31
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7,500
2021 31
31

60,000
0.08
65,000
2021 31

0.53
2021 31
2021 31

0.01
2021 31
2021 31
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21,380,325

NAV

NAV

NAV
NAV

2021

115,362,273
(61,325)

1,327,103

116,628,051




Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2021
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i Expressed in Undted Stctes Dedlars)

Assets

Investments, at fair value (cost $112 463 744)

Cash
Cash denominated in forsign cumancies
Recepables for

Irvestmeants sald

Interest

Total agsets

Liabilities

Dwe to custodian

Payablas for
Units repurchased
Professional fees
Distnbutor fees
Prnting fees
Management fess
Accountng and administrative feas
Agent company fess
Total liabilities

Met assets

Units outstanding
Class UsD

Het asset value per unit
Class UsD

115,245849
1,264 453
052

172485
4,252

117,587,181

B3

778,340
T1.3T11
49512
40,563

8725
T.066
3,500

259,140

116,628,051

11,351,969

10.27

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

i Expressed in United Stctes Dedlars)

Investment income

Interest income 3 1,122 231
Total investment income 1122231
Expenses
Drstnbutor feas 711,332
Management fees 10618
Accoainting and administrative feas 75026
Professional fees 70,445
Pnnting feas 26678
Trustes fees 15,000
Agent company fees 13421
Other fees {5,523)
Custody fees (13,399)
Organizabon expanse 151,470}
Total expenses 948628
et investment income 172,653
REALIZED AND UMREALIZED GAINALOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND
FOREIGHM CURREMCY :
Realized galnfloss) an:
Irvestments i secunbes 947,627
Foreign cumency transactions 23
Met realized gain 047 656
Met change in unrealized appreciationf{depreciation) from:
Investments i secunlies {2,114, 263)
Fareign curmancy ransactions B.775
Met change in unrealized depreciation {2,107 490}
Het loss from investments and foreign currency (1,159,834}
et decrease in net assets resulting from operations § {987,181}

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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i Expressed in Unidted Stctes Dedlars)

Met increasef{decrease) in net assets resulting from cperations:
Mat invastmeant incomea

Met realized gain

Mat change in unrealized dapreciation
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations

Met decrease in net assels resulting from fund unit transactions
Met decrease in net assels

het aszets
Beginning of year
End of year

Transachons in units for the year endad May 31, 2021 are as follows

Fund unit transaction
Units Redeamed
Units, end of year

Amounts Redeamed
Amounts, end of year

172,653
47 656
{2,107 490)

(987 181

[34 T34 296)

(35 THA4TT)

152 348 538

116,628,051

(3400215}

[3408.215)

{34,724 206)

{34,734, 206)

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

i Expressed in Unidted Stctes Dedlars)

Cash flows from cperating activities:

Met decrease in net assels resulting from operations (987 .181)
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assels resulbng from
operations to net cash used in operating activities:

FProceeds from sale of investments 34673911

Realized gains on investments in secunbies (947 B2T)

Change in unrealized depreciation on invesiments in secunties 2114265

Mat accretion of discount on iInvestment secunties [365,803)

Decrease inrecavables for investments sold (414,056)

Imcraase in receivablas for intenest 5631
Changes in payables for

Professional feas 15,360

Custody faas (50,983)

Dustributor fees (1432)

Frnting fees 3525

Accounting and administratve fees (36 625)

Management fees (785)

Agent company fees {27)

Other liabilties 154 ,240)
Mat cash used inaperating actrties 33 967,831
Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments on regemption of units (34,315,194)
Mat cash provided by financng activities {34.315,184)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents [347.363)
Cash and cash equivalanrts - Baginneng of year 1,911,908
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1564642
At May 31, 2021 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash 1,264 453

Cash denominated in foreign currencies 300,152

Due ta custodian (83)
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year 1564542

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Highlights

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

{Expressed in United Sictes Dollars)

Per-unit operating performance:

et asset value, beginning of year 3 10,322
Mat irvestment incoma’ 0.0
Met gan from investments and foragn cumrency {0 08}
Total loss from rwestment operalions (0058
Met asset value, end of year § 10.27
Total retum® (0. 48)%

Ratios to average net assets=”
Ratio of expenses o average nat assets 0.71%
Ratio of nat imvestment income to average net assets 0 12%

' Calculated based on average units outstanding dunng the yvear
# Uratholder's rebum and ratios may vary from the retum and ratios presented dus 1o the bming of capial transactions

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the *Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands, The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019, and commenced operations on September 30, 2019

Purseant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited and 10 EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Govermment of the Cayvman [slands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a net asset
value per unit on the matrity date being not less than 100% of the 1ssue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the issue of Units in 5 Year USD Performance Linked Notes to be issued by Signum Millenia 11 Limited.

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust’s custodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Administratos™), Such duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entity.

Investors are able to subscribe into a single class of units; United States Dollar.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP™) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in United
States Dollar (“87 or “LISD™).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE™) Accounting Standards Codification
(" ASC™) Topic 246 Fmancial Services — Investment Companies.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in prepaning the financial
staterments.

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Cash balances are nommally held in accounts with the Custodian, The Series Trist
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents,

{B) Valuation. FASE ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

9
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).

The guidance establishes three levels of the far value hierarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 — Fair value measurements denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2 - Fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (Le as prices) or indirectly (e denved
froum prices); and

*  Level 3 — Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statemnent of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2021.#

(Unadjusted)
Cuoted Prices
in A ctive Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Investments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
[Lewvel 1) [Lawal 2) [Lewvel 3) May 31, 2021
Performance Linked Motes E - £ - F 115 245849 § 115245 849

*  For further information on categories of securities refer to the Schedule of Investments,

The following is a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3) for the Series Trust during the vear ended May 31, 2021, as applicable:

Transfers inte Transfers out of
Inyestrm ant | n Securities Sales 3t cost Level 3 Level 3
Perarmance Linked Motes ] ey % - £
Tatal Invesm ants 5 32284 & - E

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at each WAV date. The MNotes are exposed to a
Fixed Portion and an Active Portion. The Fixed Portion is structured through cumrency swap transactions that
exchange Japanese Yen (“JPY™) for Japanese Govemment Bonds (“JGBs™) and the currency of denomination of the
Series Trust (USD). The Active Portion aims to generate excess retum based on the perfformance of the Strategy
through the call option transaction between the Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs Intemnational (*GSI™). On the mnitial
closing date of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a diseount to its face value which is the value on
maturity and matches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discount is used to provide against the fixed
cosls over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion. The Active Portion provides, through the
call aption transaction, a notional exposure to four strategies, MA ADG Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCI Ltd and MaA
Miederhoffer Smart Alpha Lid. Should the performance of the Active Portion be positive then the Series Trust will,
subject to no default on the part of the Notes lssuer, JGBs, the backed assets or GSI, the counterparty to the currency
swap agreement, returmn the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus the value of the Active Portion (the “excess
returmn”™). Should the performance of the Active Portion be negative then there will be no excess retumn and the Series
Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only at maturity, The Fixed Portion 15 valued based on vield with valuation
inputs being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31, 2021 an increase in the vield of 1%

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

would result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 3.33% The Active Portion is valued based on
the strategy level, which in tumn is based on the performance of the underlying Funds, At May 31, 2021 an increase
in strategy level of 1% would result in an increase in the Note Price of 0.16%.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation technigques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make wvaluation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
inforrnation, specific and broad credit data, hquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial mstrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determmination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
invalved in the relevant markel. The calegorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument.

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realized gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-cut cod
basiz. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date, Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes,

(I} Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting cwrrency is United States Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, evenls
and conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrealized foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realized gains
or losses and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investment securitics and income and expenses are
translated on the respective dates of such ransactions and the reporting date, respectively, The effects of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Staternent of Operations from
the effects of changes in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realized and
unrealized gains or losses,

{E) Due to Custodian. Due to custedian m the Statemnent of Assets and Liabilitics imcludes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed,

(F) Olfsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offselting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial pesition for recognized assets and liabilities, These recognized assels
and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative mstmuments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off eriteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
armounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to set off, and the Series Trust’s right of set off is
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2021, there was no offsetting.

{G) Receivables for Units Subscribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
subscribed in advance is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2021. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase smount that is payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2021,

{H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and te brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

11
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

3. UNITS
As of May 31, 2021 all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

{A) Subseription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day.
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
{each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,
Tokyvo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from tme to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust,

All ncome, expenses, reahized and unrealized gans and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assels.

{B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
Londen, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their nitial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

{C) Valuation. The net asset value is caleulated by the Administrator as at the valiation point on each Valuation
Day using such pricing service provider or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time
to time, The Manager believes that the methods, principles, significant assumplions used are reasonable, reliable and
consistent, have been consistently applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value
measurement. Such prices will be treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there
were no independent verification of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in USD.

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Unit,

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager i consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

{3} Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders,
Consequently, all the Series Trust's nel meome and realised capital gams will be reinvested and reflected i the MNet
Asset Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (credit risk). Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default.
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS (CONTINUED)

{A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of ther Units only by memans of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased.

{B) No Guarantee

An mvestment in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by any government, govermment agencies or
instrismentalities or any bank guarantee fund. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and/or down. Preservation
of principal i not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust invelves certain investrment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested.

{C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are dencminated in USD. This presents certain risks relating to cumrency conversion if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in a eurreney or cwrency unil (inchuding JPY) other than USD,
These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of USD
of revaluation of the nvestor's currency ) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the investor's
currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the investor's
currency against USD would decrease (a) the investor's currency equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and Net
Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investor's currency equivalent value of the distributions pay able (if any ).

{1y Other Risk

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavins disease 2019 (“COVID -19" a
pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (ii) the impact of the COVID-19 on
zlobal markets. Management note no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as a result of the pandemic,
Management has made an assessment of the impact of recent market events on the fund's ability to continue as a
zoing concemn and concluded that the going concern assumption remains appropriate,

The Trustee and the Manager are monitoring developments relating to coronavinus and are coordinating their
operational response based on existmg busmess contimuity plans and on guidance from the World Health
Organization, relevant govemments, and general pandemic response practices,

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust’s organizational decuments, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnnified against certain liabilities thal may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
indemnification clauses. The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would
invelve fiture claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have not yet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts,

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status. Under current Cayman [slands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders

thereof, in respect of any such property or income, Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position

13
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant taxing authority, As of May 31, 2021, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreign tax pavable as disclosed in the Series Trust's Staternent of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively,

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US$4,166. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of 0.04% per anmum of the Net Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the vear ended May 31,
2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01%% per annum of the MNet Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in amrears. The transfer agent fees eamed by the
Administrator during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding transfer agent fees payable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Staternent of Assets and Liabilities,

respectively.

{B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian, The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.01 5% per anmum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears, The fees earned by the Custodian during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,

{C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust (1) a one-off fee of US$7,500 on the Initial
Closing Date, and (i) a fixed annual fee of USS15,000. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the year ended May
31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of USE60,000 on the Initial Closing Date,
(ii) a fee at the rate of (L08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of USE100,000 per annum,
accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears, and (iii} a one-off fee of
IS 565,000 upon the termination of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Manager during the year ended May 31,
2021 and cutstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Amount of each class of Units, calculated and acerued daily and payable menthly in arrears, The fees eamed by the
Distributor during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees pavable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2021
have been disclosed in the Staternent of Operations and the Statemnent of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

{F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, caleulated and accrued daily and payable monthly in amrears. The fees eaned by
the Agent during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payvable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: (i) governmental
fees: (ii) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio ransaction expenses; (i) costs of borrowing money,
including interest expenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
and (v) audit fees.

8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the

issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders,

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fees are set out in Mote 7 to the financial statements.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 1, 2021, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be issued.

From June 1, 2021 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
UsSD 21,380,325
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2021

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

Az per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred a expense reserve inclusive of five vears
of anticipated expenses in year 1 of the Series Trust’s operations for the calculation of the NAY in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contractual fees the Fund will pay
over its life. Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been adjusted
through the Statement of Operations in the current period to reflect only those costs attributable to the current period
in these financial staternents,

The Series Trust mcurred organizational and set up costs.  For the calculation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial staternents
(“F5 NAV™), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAYV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the “Trading MAV™) is shown below.

2021
Trading NAV 115,362,273
Organization expenses (61,325)
Expense reserve 1,327,103
F5 NAV 116,628,051

16
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2022

31

1909

2022 31

26,524,515 24,891,571 2,344,039
136,498 12,854
642,842 60,536

7,071 666
25,677,982 2,418,096
64,107 6,037
36,389 3,427
11,617 1,094
8,753 824
7,392 696
6,021 567
686 65
134,965 12,710
25,543,017 2,405,386
2,676,444
9.54 898
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1909

2022 31

410,194 38,628
410,194 38,628
181,393 17,082

60,000 5,650
51,464 4,846
37,020 3,486
21,946 2,067
8,050 758
7,874 741
3,421 322
371,168 34,953
39,026 3,675
(8,969) (845)
(50,259) (4,733)
(59,228) (5,578)

(2,034,431) (191,582)
135,043 12,717

(1,899,388) (178,865)

(1,958,616) (184,443)

(1,919,590) (180,768)
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39,026
(59,228)
(1,899, 388)

3,675
(5,578)
(178, 865)

(1,919,590)

(180, 768)

(8,866,148)

(834,925)

(10,785,738)

36,328,755

(1,015,693)

3,421,079

25,543,017

2,405,386

(908,795)

(908,795)

(8,866,148)

(834,925)

(8,866,148)

(834,925)
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1909

2022 31

(1,919,590) (180,768)
8,860,759 834,418
8,969 845
2,034,431 191,582
(240,538) (22,651)
681,656 64,192
(215) (20)
(10,130) (954)
6,034 568
(396) 37
29,819 2,808
3,017 369
4,932 464
(241) (23)
561 53
9,459,968 890,845
(9,555,889) (899,878)
(9,555,889) (899,878)
(95,921) (9,033)
875,261 82,423
779,340 73,390
2022 31
136,498 12,854
642,842 60,536

779,340 73,390
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1909

31

10.13 954
0.01 1
(0-06) (6)
(0.59) (56)
9.54 898
(5.82)
1.27
0.13
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BBH

2021 12
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1909

2019 30

2021

100

BBH

2022
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GAAP

GAAP

ASC

FASB ASC

GAAP

820

946
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2022 31
2022
31
$ $ 24,891,571 $ 24,891,571
2022 31
$ 8,869,728 $ $
$ 8,869,728 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA ADG Limited MA Crabel Limited MA GCI Limited MA
Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited
JeB
GSI
2022 31
2.34
2022 31
0.12

171/318



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31

2022 31
2022 31

172/318



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31

173/318



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

174/318



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50

2022 31

1,666
0.04
2022 31 2022
31
0.01
2022 31
2022 31
0.015 2022
31 2022 31

7,500
15,000 2022 31
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2022 31
60,000
60,000 0.08
65,000
2022 31 2022
31
0.53
2022 31
2022 31
0.01
2022 31
2022 31
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2022 11
5,373,994
MA WCM LP Ltd
NAV

NAV

NAV
NAV

2022 31
24,831,115
5,994
705,908
25,543,017
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1909
2022 31

97.4

97.4
26,765,130 Signum Millenia 11, Ltd.5.8% due 9/25/24 24,891,571
24,891,571
26,524,515 24,891,571
26,524,515 24,891,571
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2022
{Expressed in Ausiralion Dolfor)
Assets
I estments, at fair value (cost $25 524 515) $ 24 801 571
Cash 136,498
Cash denomunated in foregn cumenceses 642,842
Receivables for
Interest 7071
Total assets 25677 982
Liabilities
Payables for
Professional fees B4.107
Distributor fess 36,359
FPrrting fees 11.617
Management fees 8,753
Custody faes T1.392
Accourting and adminisiralne feas G021
Agent company fees G26
Total liabllities 134 965
Met assets F 25543007

Units outstanding
Class ALD 2676444

Met asset value per unit
Class ALD § 9,54

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)

Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended May 31, 2022

{Expressed in Australian Doilar)

Investment income

Interést income k1 410,194
Tetal investment income 410,154
Expenses
Cestnbutor fees 181,383
Management fses G0, 000
Professional fees 51,464
Accounting and administratve fees AT0X
Trustes fees 21,946
Prirting feas 8,050
Qther feas T.874
Apant company fass 34
Total expenses 371,168
Met investment income 28 026

REALISED AND UNREALISED GAIMN/LOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS AND
FOREIGN CURRENCY:
Realised gainfloss) on:

Investments in securties {2.969)

Fareign cumency transactions (50,259]

Net realised loss (53, 278
Met change in unrealised appreciation/{depreciation) from:

Invéstrments in secunfias {2,034 431)

Foraign cumency transadions 135043

Met change In unrealised depreciation {1,899 358)
Met loss from investments and foreign currency (1,958 G16)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations £ {1,919 500}

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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{Expressed in Awstradicm Doller)

Met increasef{decrease) in net assets resulting from operations:
Mat irvestrnant incomes
Met realised loss
Mat change & unrealised depreciation
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations

ket decrease in net assels resulting from fund wung ransactions
et decrease in nel assets

Met assets
Beginning of year
End of year

Transachions in units for the year ended May 31, 2022 wena as follows

Fund wnit transactions
Units Redeemed
Total units redeemed

Amourts Redeemed
Total amount redeemed

39026
(59.228)
{1,898 388)

{1,819 5490}

{5 866 148)

(10,785,738)

26,338,755

25543017

[O0E 705)

(908,795)

{5 B85 148)

{5 866,145}

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statemnents.

[
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended May 31, 2022

{Expressed in Awstradicm Doller)

Cash flows from eperating activities:
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operabons § [1.919.550)

Adjustments bo reconcile net decrease in net assets resulting from
operations o net cash providad by operating activities

Proceads from sale of investments £ 860,759
Realised loss on imestments n secuntios 8969
Change in unrealised deprecialion on imvestments in securities 2034431
Met accretion of discount on investment secunties (240.538)
Changes in recavables for
Investment secunties sold 581,655
Interest income [215)
Changes in payables for
Professional fees (10,130)
Custody fees 6,034
Accounting and administratae feas (286)
Custnibutor feet 29,819
Printing feas 307
Management faes 4,832
Trustes feas (241)
Agart company fees 961
Mat cash provided by cperating activities 9,454_968

Caszh flows frem financing activities:

Payments on repurchase of units {9,555 884)
Meat cash used in financing activities [9.555 289)
Mot decrease in cash and cash equivalents 95,0921)
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year 875,261
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year + 779,340

At May 31, 2022 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash 3 136,498
Cash denominated in foregn cumencies 42 842
Cash and cash equivalents - End of waar [ 779,340

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statemnents.
7
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)

Statement of Financial Highlights
For the Year Ended May 31, 2022

{Expressed in Awstradicm Doller)
Per-unit operating performance:

AUD per unit
Met asset value, beginning of year £ 10.13
Met imvestment mcoma’ .04
Met loss trom ivestments and foreign curmency {0 B
Total loss from irvestment operations {059
Met asset value, end of year £ g 54
Total return® 158210
Ratios to average net assets:”
Ratia of expencses to average net assets {.27%
Ratio of net investment income ko average net assels 01304

' Calculated based on average unis outstanding during the vear
* Unithodder's return and ratlios may vary from the returmn and ratios presented due to the timing of capital transactions

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1209 AUD {the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Crty Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman [slands. The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019 and commenced operations on September 30, 2019,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited and IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayvman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman [slands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust was to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a net asset
value per unit on the maturity date being not less than 10024 of the issue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the issue of Units in 5 Vear AUD Performance Linked Notes to be issued by Signum Millenia IT Limited.

Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust’s custodian (the *Custodian™) and
admimistrator (the *Admmnistrator™). S8uch duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entity.

BBH has entered into an agreement with State Street Corporation ("State Street™) under which State Street will
acquire BBH's Investor Services business; which includes its custody, fund accounting and administration, transfer
agency, depositary, foreign exchange, trustee and securities lending services. The transaction is expected to be
completed in due course, subject Lo customary ¢losing conditions and regulatory approvals,

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC™) announced that a conditional agreement had been
reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust. CSC and
Intertrust anticipate that the transaction will close in the second half of 2022, subject to customary closing conditions
and regulatory approvals.

Investors are able to subscribe into a single class of units; Australian Dollar.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial staternents.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP") applicable to financial reporting and are stated in
Australian Dollar (2" or * AUD™) rounded to the nearest AU

The preparation of financial staternents in conformmity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBE™) Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC™) Topic 946 Financial Services — Investment Companies.

The following is a sumnmary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
staterments,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements
May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUFED)

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are normally held in accounts with the Custodian, The Series Trust
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents,

(B) Valuation. FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e.. the “exit price™) in an orderly tramsaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

In accordance with the muthoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its myvestments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).

The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 — Fair value measurements derved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2 - Fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are chaervable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived
from prices); and

*  Level 3 - Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs),

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2022.%

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Obs ervable Unobsérvable
Investments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
fLevel 1) {Level 2} Lewal 3} 31, 2022
Perfermance Linked Notes 5 = ] = £ 4B 5M § 2E91.5T1

*  For further information on categories of securities refer to the Schedule of Investments.

The following is a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3) for the Series Trust during the year ended May 31, 2022, as applicable:

Transters s Transfers eut of
Investment in Securities Sales at cost Lol 3 Lawel 3
Performance Linked Naofes E] 8,865,728 Ed - i -
Total Investm ents 5 B.BE69, 728 5 - E -

The Performance Linked Motes are valued by the Caleulation Agent at each NAV date. The Notes are exposed toa
Fixed Portion and an Active Portion. The Fixed Portion is structured through currency swap transactions exchange
Japanese Yen (“JPY™) for Japanese Govermment Bonds (“JGBs™) and the curency of denomination of the Series

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trust (AUD), The Active Portion aims to generate excess retum based on the performance of the Strategy through
the call option transaction between the Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs International (*GSI7). On the initial closing
date of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a discount to its face value which is the value on maturity
anid matches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust The discount is used to provide against the fived costs
over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion. The Active Portion provides, through the call
option transaction, a notional exposure to four strategies, MA ADG Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCI Ltd and MA
Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Lid, Should the performance of the Active Portion be positive then the Series Trust will,
subject to no default on the part of the MNotes Issuer, JGBs, the backed assets or GSI, the counterparty to the currency
swap agreement, returmn the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus the value of the Active Portion (the “excess
retur’™). Should the performance of the Active Portion be negative then there will be no exeess return and the Series
Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only at maturity.” The Fixed Portion is valued based on yield with valuation
inputs being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31, 2022 an increase in the yield of 1%
wotld result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approsimately 2,342 The Active Portion is valued based on
the strategy level, which in tum is based on the performance of the underlying Funds, At May 31, 2022 an increase
in strategy level of 1% would result in an increase in the Note Price of 0.12%.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make valuation decisions, mcluding assumplions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable™ requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrurment within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily comespond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument,

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting pumposes. Realised gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(D} Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting currency is Australian Dollar, which is the
curreney of the primary economic environment in which it operates, Therefore, the Australian Dollar is considered
as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions. The fluctuations m the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from changes
in exchange rates are recorded as unrealised foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realised gains or losses
and unrealised appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and expenses are translated on the
respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from the effects of
changes m market prices and values of those securities, but are mcluded with net realised and unrealised gains or
losses,

{E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Staternent of Assets and Liabilities includes amounts related to
foreign currency o cash owed.

{F) Offsetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of nelting arrangements on its financial position for recognised assets and liabilities. These recognised assels
and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting armrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUFED)

Series Trust o another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust ntends to set off, and the Series Trust’s right of set off is
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2022, there was no offsetting,

(G) Receivables for Units Subscribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for units
subscribed m advance is camried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2022, Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2022,

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS
Asof May 31, 2022, all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder,

{A) Subscription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day,
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
{each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New Yok, London,
Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valiation Day. rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust,

All income, expenses, realised and unrealised gains and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assets.

(B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
Lendon, Tokve and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, afler consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of ther initial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

{C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrator as at the valuation point on each Valuation
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokvoe and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to tme determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time o time, The Manager believes that the
methads, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as conchisive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there were no ndependent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in AUD,

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Unit.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

3. UNITS (CONTINUED)

The Administrater may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably cbtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
et asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

(D) Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders.
Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realised capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Aszet Vahe,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the nonmal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the cther party to the
tratisactions to perform (credit risk), Similar to credit risk, the Seres Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Senes Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default.
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements. Financial
assets, which potentially expose the Series Trust to credit risk, consist principally of cash due from counterparties,
investments and unrealised gains on derivative contracts,

(A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase, In addition, there may be siteations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased.

(B) No Guarantee

An investment i the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by any govermment, govermnment agencies or
instrumentalities or any bank guarantee fund, Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guarantesd or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and’or down. Preservation
of principal is not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, including the
prossible loss of principal. There is no certamty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested.

{C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in AUD, This presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if” an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit other than AUD. These include the
risk that exchange rates may significantly change (incleding changes due to devaluation of AUD or revaluation of
the Investor's Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over AUD or the Investor's Currency, as the
case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Investor's Currency against
AUD would decrease (a) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the MNet Asset Value and Met Asset Value per
Unit and (b) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (f army ).

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust’s organizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may anse out of perfonmance of their duties to the Senes Trust.

Additionally, i the normmal course of business, the Series Trust enters mto contracts that contan a variety of
indemnification clauses, The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would

involve fitture claims that may be made agamst the Series Trust that have not vet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prier claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status, Under current Cayman Islands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position
of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resclution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognised in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelthood of being realised upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant taxing authority. As of May 31, 2022, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreign tax payable as disclosed in the Series Trust’s Statement of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively,

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Admmistrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US $1,666. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of (.04% per annum of the Net Asset Value, The fees camed by the Administrator during the vear ended May 31,
2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value, acerued on and
caleulated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears. The transfer agent fees eamed by the
Addministrator during the vear ended May 31, 2022 and outstanding transfer agent fees pavable to the Administrator
as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Dav and pavable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the vear ended May 31, 2022 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust (1) a one-ofl fee of USE7,500 on the Initial
Clesing Date, and (ii) a fixed annoal fee of USS15,000. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the vear ended May
31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in the Staternent of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manager will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a (i) a one-off fee of USS60,000 on the
Initial Closing Date, (i) a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of
AUDG0000 per annum, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and pay able monthly in amrear and (i)
a one-off fee of USE45,000 upon the termination of the Series Trust, The fees eamed by the Manager during the
vear ended May 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2022 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, regpectively,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2022

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

{E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Amount of each elass of Units, ealculated and acerued daily and payvable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by the
Distributor during the year ended May 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2022
have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{F} Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by
the Agent during the year ended May 31, 2022 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2022 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: (i) govermmental
fees: (ii) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (iii) costs of borrowing money,
including interest expenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
and (v) professional fees,

S. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the
issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unithalders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fees are set out in Mote 7 to the financial statements.

2. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 7, 2022, the date
on which these financial statements were approved for issue by the Trustee and Manager.

From June 1, 2022 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
AUD 5,373 994,

On & September 2022 a MNoteholder Consent Letter was signed to replace an underlying holding within the MNote,
The notional exposure to MA ADG Ltd has been replaced by a notional exposure to MA WCM LP Lid.
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A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit T rust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2022

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

As per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incwred a expense reserve inclusive of five years
of anticipated expenses inyear 1 of the Series Trust's operations for the caleulation of the NAV in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendrc. The expense reserve is composed of contractual fees the Series Trust will
pay over its life, Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been
adjusted through the Statement of Operations in the current period to reflect only those costs attributable to the
current period in these financial statements,

The Series Trust incurred organizational and set up costs, For the calculation of the NAVY in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amorfised by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial statermnents
(“F8 NAV"), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV ealculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the “Trading NAV™) is shown below.

53172022
Trading NAY 24,831,115
Organization expenses 5,994
Expense reserve 705,908
F§ MNAV 25543,017
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(Expressed in Awstralion Dolfar)

Principal
Amount Security Description

PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES

CAYMAN ISLANDS

Signum Millersa il Lid
AUD 26,765,130 5.8% due 92504

TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS
TOTAL PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES [Cost 326,524 515)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS (Cost $26,524,515)

" of
Met
Assets Fair Value

97 4%

97.4%
5 24.891.5T1
E 24.891.5T1
H) 24,891,571

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial statetnents.
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2021

31

1909

2021 31

35,153,705 35,555,192 3,348,232
963,912 90,772
0
681,656 64,192
6,856 646
37,207,616 3,503,841
88,651 8,348
689,741 64,953
74,237 6,991
7,700 725
6,570 619
6,417 604
3,821 360
1,358 128
241 23
125 12
878,861 82,762
36,328,755 3,421,079
3,585,239
10.13 954
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491,898

46,322

491,898

46,322

221,283
78,421
60,000
33,425
21,946

8,050

6,263

4,175
(15,908)
(16,825)

20,838
7,385
5,650
3,148
2,067

758
590
393

(1,498)

(1,584)

400,830

37,746

91,068

8,576

166,927
(14,429)

15,720
(1,359)

152,498

14,361

717,229
(117,189)

67,541
(11,036)

600,040

56,506

752,538

70,867

843,606

79,442
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91,068
152,498
600,040

8,576
14,361
56,506

843,606

79,442

(10,494, 496)

(988,267)

(9,650,890)

45,979,645

(908,824)

4,329,903

36,328,755

3,421,079

(1,059, 350)

(1,059,350)

(10,494,496)

(988,267)

(10,494,496)

(988, 267)
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1909

2021 31

843,606 79,442
10,474,747 986,407
(166,927) (15,720)
(717,229) (67,541)
2,932 276
(246,522) (23,215)
(681,656) (64,192)
(6,856) (646)
21,629 2,037
(36,293) (3,418)
(11,115) (1,047)
(6,831) (643)
754 71
(1,371) (129)
(1,110) (105)
(128) (12)
(39,727) (3,741)
9,427,903 887,826
(9,804,755) (923,314)
(9,804,755) (923,314)
(376,852) (35,488)
1,252,113 117,911
875,261 82,423
2021 31
963,912 90,772
(88,651) (8,348)

875,261 82,423
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1909

2021 31

9.90 932
0.02 2
0.21 20
0.23 22

10.13 954
2.35
0.96
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2019

30

100
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FASB
ASC 946
FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2021 31
2021
31
$ $ $ 35,555,192 $ 35,555,192
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31

$ 10,307,820 $ $
$ 10,307,820 $ $
NAV
JGB
GSI
MA ADG Limited MA Crabel Limited MA GCI Limited MA

Niederhoffer Smart Alpha Limited

3.33

0.16

JGB

GSI

2021 31

2021 31
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2021 31
2021 31

2021 31
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2020 11 COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19

FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50
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2021 31
1,666
0.04
2021 31 2021
31
0.01
2021 31
2021 31
0.015 2021
31 2021 31

7,500

15,000 2021 31
2021 31

60,000

60,000 0.08
65,000
2021 31 2021
31
0.53
2021 31
2021 31

0.01
2021 31
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31
2021 11
5,590,196

NAV

NAV

NAV
NAV

2021

35,590,074
(54,350)
793,031

36,328,755




EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

206/318



Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2021

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

i Expressed in Avstralicn Dedler)

Assets
Investments, at fair value {cost $35 153 705)
Cash denominated in fareign cumeancies
Receivables for

Investments sold

Interest

Total assets

Liabilities

Dus to custodan

Fayables for,
Units repurchased
Frofessional fees
Prnting feas
Distnbutor fees
Accounting and administrative fees
Management fess
Custody feas
Trustee fees
Agant company fees
Total liabilities

Het assets

Units sutstanding
Class ALD

HMet asset value per unit
Class ALID

35,555,192
63,912

681,656
£.856

37207 616

58,651

B84 7419
74,237
7.700
6570
6417
2521
1,358
241

125

878861

36,338 755

3,585,238

10,13

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

i Expressed in Avstralicm Dedler)

Investment income

Interast income i 451 808
Total investment income 421,698
Expenses
Dastnbutor feas 221,283
Professional fees 7841
Management laes 50,000
Actounting and administrative fees 3343
Trustes fees 21,948
Prnting fees 2,050
Custody feas G, 263
Agart companyy fees 4175
Qrganizabion expense (15,908)
Othar feas (16825)
Total expenses 400,530
Met investment income 21,068
REALIZED AND UMREALIZED GAINALOSS) FROM INVESTMEMNTS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY :
Realized gainf{less) on:
Irvestments n secunbes 166,927
Foréign cumency transactions (14 429}
Met realized gain 152 498
Met change in unrealized appreciationfdepreciation) from;
Investments i securnbas 7,229
Fareign cumancy iransactions {117,184}
Met change in unrealized appreciation 500,040
Het gain from investments and foreign currency 752 538
Met increase in net assets resulting from cperations 3 54 3,606

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

(Expressed in Anstrediem Dollar)

Met increasef{decreass) in net assets resulting from cperations:

Mt invastmeant income % 91,062
Met reaized gain 152,498
Mat change in unrealized appreciation B00,040
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 243 6086
Met decrease in net assels resulting from fund unit transactions (10,454 426)
Met decrease in net assels {9 E50 890)
Het aggets
Beginning of year 45 974 845
End of year F 36,328 755

Transachons in units for the year anded May 31, 2021 were as follows

Fund unit transactions

Units Redeemed {1,058 350}
Units, end of year {1,058 350)
Amounts Redeamed % (10,494 496}
Amounts, end of year § (10454 496}

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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(Expressed in Austradicn Doflar)
Cash flows from cperating activities:
Met increase in net assets resulting from aperations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assels esulbng from
operations to net cash used in operating activities:
FProceeds from sale of investments
Readlized gains on investments in secunbes
Change in unrealized apprecigtion on investmeants in secunties
Decrease In other assets
Mt accration of discount on investmant securnities

Changes in recavablas for
Irvestment secunties sokd
Interest income

Changes in payables for
Professional fees
Custody feas
Accountrg and administrative fees
Castributor faes
Printing fees
Management feses
Trustes feas
Agent company fess
Othar hakaldies

Met cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on repurchase of units
Mel cash provided by fnancng activitios

Mal dacrease in cash and cash aguivalents

Cash and cash aguivalents - Beginnéng of vear
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

At May 31, 2021 the amounts included in cagh and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash denominated in foreign cumancies

Due to custodian

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

343 606

10,474,747
(166,827)
{717 220)

24832

(246,522

(681 656)
{6.258)

21629
{36.293)
{11.1415)

{6.831)

754
{1371)
[1.110)

(128)
{30,727

9427803

(4 804 755)

(9.504 755)

(376,852

1,252,113

375,261

863,912
(85 .651)

£75,261

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Financial Highlights

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

(Expressed in Anstrediem Dollar)
Per-unit operating performance:
AUD per unit

HMet asset value, beginning of year $ 0 90
Mat investment income’ 0.02
Met reglized and unrealized income from investment activities 0.21
Total income from investment operations 0.23
Met asset value, end of year $ 10.13
Total retum*® 2.35%
Ratios to average net assets:”

Ratio of expensas (o average nel assels 0 369%
Ratio of net imrvestment mcome to average net assets 0.22%

' Calculated based on average units oulstanding dunng the year
L Ungholder's return and ratios may vary from the retum and ratios presanted due to the timing of capital transadions

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands, The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Deed dated August 6, 2019 and commenced operations on September 30, 2019,

Purseant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited and 10 EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fund under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Govermment of the Cayvman [slands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust was to pursue capital appreciation, while ammmng to achieve a net asset
value per unit on the matrily date being not less than 100% of the 1ssue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the izsue of Units in 5 Year AUD Performance Linked Notes to be issued by Signum Millenia [T Limited.

Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust’s custodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Administratos™), Such duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entity.

Investors are able to subscribe into a single class of units; Australian Dollar.

Capitalised terms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America ("US GAAP”) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in
Australian Dollar (8" or “AUD™),

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE™) Accounting Standards Codification
(" ASC™) Topic 246 Fmancial Services — Investment Companies.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in prepaning the financial
staterments.

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Cash balances are nommally held in accounts with the Custodian, The Series Trist
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents,

{B) Valuation. FASE ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

9
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).

The guidance establishes three levels of the far value hierarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 — Fair value measurements denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2 - Fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (Le as prices) or indirectly (e denved
froum prices); and

*  Level 3 — Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statemnent of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2021.#

[Unadjusted)
Cuoted Prices
in A ctive Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identizal Observable Unabservable
Inwestments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
[Lewvel 1) [Lawvel 2) [Lewvel 3) May 31, 2021
Performance Linked Notes E - 5 - § 355585 192 § 35585182

*  For further information on categories of securities refer to the Schedule of Investments.

The following is a summary of sales and transfers of the fair valuations using significant uncbservable mputs (Level
3) for the Series Trust during the vear ended May 31, 2021, as applicable:

Transfers inte Transfers et of
Invastmant in Securities Sales at cost Lavel 3 Laval 3
Perfarmance Linked Motes % 10,307 B30 i - 3
Total Investm ants E] 10,207,820 $ - 5

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at each NAV date. The MNotes are exposed to a
Fixed Portion and an Active Portion. The Fixed Portion 15 structured through currency swap transactions exchange
Japanese Yen (“JPY™) for Japanese Government Bonds (“JGBs™) and the currency of denomination of the Series
Trust (AUD). The Active Portion aims to generate excess return based on the performance of the Strategy through
the call option transaction between the Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs International (“GSI™). On the initial closing
date of the Series Trust the Fixed Portion is purchased at a discount to its face value which is the value on maturity
and matches the initial subscriptions into the Series Trust. The discount is used to provide against the fixed costs
over the life of the Series Trust and to invest in the Active Portion. The Active Portion provides, through the call
option transaction, a notional exposure to four strategies, MA ADG Ltd, MA Crabel Ltd, MA GCI Ltd and MA
NiederhofTer Smart Alpha Lid. Should the performance of the Active Portion be positive then the Series Trust will,
subject to no default on the part of the Notes Issuer, JGBs, the backed assets or GS1, the counterparty to the currency
swap agreement, refum the full face value of the Fixed Portion plus the value of the Active Portion (the “excess
retum’™). Should the performance of the Active Portion be negative then there will be no excess retum and the Series
Trust will receive the Fixed Portion only at maturity,” The Fixed Portion is valued based on vield with valuation
inputs being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessment. At May 31, 2021 an increase in the vield of 1%

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

would result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 3.33% The Active Portion is valued based on
the strategy level, which in tumn is based on the performance of the underlying Funds, At May 31, 2021 an increase
in strategy level of 1% would result in an increase in the Note Price of 0.16%.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation technigques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants use to make wvaluation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
inforrnation, specific and broad credit data, hquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial mstrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determmination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
invalved in the relevant markel. The calegorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager's perceived risk of that
instrument.

{C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realized gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the first-in, first-cut cost
basis, Dividend inceme is recorded on the ex-dividend date, Investment income is recorded net of withholding taxes.

(D) Foreign Currency. The Series Trust’s functional and reporting currency is Australian Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. Therefore, the Australian Dollar is considered
as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from changes
ift exchange rates are recorded as unrealized foreign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realized gains or losses
and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and expenses are translated on the
respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from the effects of
changes in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realized and unrealized gains or
losges.

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities mcludes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed,

{F} Offzetting. The Series Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. These recognized assets
and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative mstruments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to set off, and the Series Trust’s right of set off is
enforceable at law. As of May 31, 2021, there was no offsetting.

{G) Receivables for Units Subscribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Reccivable for units
subscribed in advance is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2021, Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that s payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2021,

{H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

3. UNITS
As of May 31, 2021, all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

{A) Subseription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day.
The purchase price per unit calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Valuation Day
{each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,
Tokyvo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from tme to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the
number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust,

All Income, expenses, realized and unrealized gains and losses of the Senes Trust are allocated to the unit classes
based on their respective net assels.

{B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
Londen, Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or davs as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their nitial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

{C) Valuation. The net asset value is caleulated by the Administrator as at the valiation point on each Valuation
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tekye and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
of pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may detenmine from time to time. The Manager believes that the
methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager and there were no independent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator calculates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in AUD,

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, includes fractions of a
Unit.

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably abtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

(D)) Distribution Policy. The policy in relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions to Unitholders,
Consequently, all the Series Trust's net incorme and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Asgzet Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKES

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instuments and enters into financial ransactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform {credit risk). Similar to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or

the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsettled or open transactions will default.
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

{A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units enly by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be bome by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased.

(B) No Guarantee

An mnvesiment in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranteed by any government, government agencies or
instrumentalities or any bank guarantee fund. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuate up and/or down, Preservation
of principal is not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, including the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their mitial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the tolal amount invested.

{C) Exchangze Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in AUD. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit other than AUD, These mnclude the
risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of AUD or revaluation of
the Investor's Curreney) and the risk that autherities with jurisdiction over AUD or the Investor's Currency, as the
case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Investor's Currency against
AUD would decrease (a) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and Net Asset Value per
Unit and (b) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the distributions pay able (if amy).

() Other Risk

Cn March 11, 2020, the Waorld Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID -19 a
pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID-19 on
global markets. Management note no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as a result of the pandemic.
Management has made an assessment of the impact of recent market events on the fund’s ability to continue as a
zoing concem and concluded that the going concern assumplion remaing appropriate,

The Trustee and the Manager are monitoring developments relating to coronavirus and are coordinating their
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from the World Health
Organization, relevant govemments, and general pandemic response practices,

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust's organizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified against certain liabilities that may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of
indermnnification clauses. The Series Trust's maamum exposure under these amrangements 1s unknown as this would
involve fiture claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have not yvet ocowrred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts,

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands acts in respect to its tax status. Under current Cayman [slands acts,
there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax to any property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the unitholders
thereof, in respect of any such property or income, Authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a tax position
of the Series Trust is more likely than nol to be sustained upon examination, incliding resolution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement with the relevant taxing authority. As of May 31, 2021, there was no foreign tax expense and no
outstanding foreign tax pavable as disclosed in the Series Trust’s Statement of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively,

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US $1,666. The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of 0.04% per annum of the Net Assel Value, The fees eamed by the Administrator during the vear ended May 31,
2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arears. The transfer agent fees eamed by the
Administrater during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and cutstanding transfer agent fees payable Lo the Administrator
as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
respectively.

{B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015%% per annum of the MNet Asset Value, acerued on and caleulated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in amrears. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and
outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of TUSE7,.500 on the Initial
Clesing Date, and (i) a fixed annual fee of US515,000. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the year ended May
31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manager will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a (i) a one-oft fee of USS60,000 on the
Initial Clesing Date, (ii) a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to a minimum fee of
AUDGED, 000 per annum, accrued on and caleulated as at each Valuation Day and payvable monthly in arrear and (iii)
a one-off fee of USES5.000 upon the termination of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Manager during the
vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2021 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Amount of each class of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees camed by the
Dristributor during the vear ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of May 31, 2021
have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{F) Agent Company Fees
The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per antum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamed by
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2021

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

the Agent during the year ended May 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2021 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: (i) govemmental
fees; (ii) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (iil) costs of borrowing money,
including interest expenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and mdemnification expenses;
and (v) audit fees.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series Trust and for the

issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the master trust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Details of
these fees are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements,

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 1, 2021, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be issued.

From June 1, 2021 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
ALUD 5,590,196,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Unaudited Appendix

May 31, 2021

Establishment Costs and On-Going Reserves

Az per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred a expense reserve inclusive of five vears
of anticipated expenses in year 1 of the Series Trust’s operations for the calculation of the NAY in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contractual fees the Fund will pay
over its life. Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been adjusted
through the Statement of Operations in the current period to reflect only those costs attributable to the current period
in these financial staternents,

The Series Trust mcurred organizational and set up costs.  For the calculation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full

A reconciliation for the difference between the net asset value of the Series Trust as per the financial staternents
(“F5 NAV™), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAYV calculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the “Trading MAV™) is shown below.

2021
Trading WAV 35,590,074
Organization expenses (54,350)
Expense reserve T93,031
F5 NAV 36,328,755
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2022
64,642,927 9,360,942
1,888,600 273,488
62,754,327 9,087,454
6,787,105.611
9.25 1,339
2022
20,655,646 1,945,142
936,448 88,185
19,719,197 1,856,957
2,150,506.633
9.17 864

220/318



21

02110

221/318

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

15



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022
750,000 861
75
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10 EQ 10 EQ

2022 10 10 EQ 7,500

90
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2022 19
13

260,723,385.07
446,289,867.57
134,085,067.72
55,947,057,934
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23 103

2022 30
144.81
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1Q EQ
2021 12 31
2021 2020
2,120,894 307,127 4,033,538 584,007
540,507 78,271 385,018 55,754
2,661,401 385,397 4,418,556 639,851
(18,989) (2,750) (2,000) (290)
2,642,412 382,648 4,416,556 639,561
2,642,412 382,648 4,416,556 639,561
11 750,000 108,608 750,000 108,608
1,892,412 274,040 3,666,556 530,954
2,642,412 382,648 4,416,556 639,561

2022

14
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10 EQ
2021 12 31
2021 2020
2,211,199 320,204 2,327,511 337,047
2,211,199 320,204 2,327,511 337,047
(1,395,981)  (202,152) (727,718)  (105,381)
(220,194) (31,886) 155,759 22,555
595,024 86,165 1,755,552 254,221
138,999 20,128 86,735 12,560
(8,167) (1,183) (2,083) (302)
130,832 18,946 84,652 12,258
725,856 105,111 1,840,204 266,480
725,856 105,111 1,840,204 266,480
725,856 105,111 1,840,204 266,480

227/318



EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1Q EQ
2021 12 31
2020 750,000 108,608 1,826,352 264,474 2,576,352 373,082
1,840,204 266,480 1,840,204 266,480
1,840,204 266,480 1,840,204 266,480
2020 12 31 750,000 108,608 3,666,556 530,954 4,416,556 639,561
2021 750,000 108,608 3,666,556 530,954 4,416,556 639,561
725,856 105,111 725,856 105,111
725,856 105,111 725,856 105,111
(2,500,000)  (362,025)  (2,500,000)  (362,025)
2021 12 31 750,000 108,608 1,892,412 274,040 2,642,412 382,648
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10 EQ
2021 12 31
2021 2020
1o 2,663,656 385,724 (55,272) (8,004)
2,663,656 385,724 (55,272) (8,004)
(8,167) (1,183) (2,083) (302)
(2,500,000)  (362,025)
(2,508,167)  (363,208) (2,083) (302)
155,489 22,516 (57,355) (8,306)
385,018 55,754 442,373 64,060
540,507 78,271 385,018 55,754
540,507 78,271 385,018 55,754
540,507 78,271 385,018 55,754

229/318



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 EQ

2021 12 31

10 EQ

102
102

2021 2020

1Q EQ

12
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2021 2020

(220,194) 155,759
2021 2020 12 31 10 EQ
10 EQ 1Q EQ

2021 2020
2 13
138,997 86,722
138,999 86,735

2021 2020
(8,167) (2,083)

(8,167) (2,083)
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2021 2020
138,999 86,735
(8,167) (2,083)
130,832 84,652
2035
2021 2020
27,672 36,357
188,967 195,878
1,897,665 3,794,713
6,590 6,590
2,120,894 4,033,538
2021 2020
(2,000) (2,000)
(16,989)

12 31

(18,989) (2,000)

235/318



10

11

12

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2021 2020 2020
188,967 36,357
2,086,632 3,990,591
540,507 385,018
2,816,106 4,411,966
(18,989) (2,000)
(18,989) (2,000)
2021 2020
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
2021 2020
725,856 1,840,204
8,167 2,083
734,023 1,842,287
1,692,450 (1,743,800)
16,989 2,000
220,194 (155,759)
2,663,656 (55,272)
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2021 2021 2021
12 31
385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
385,018 130,365 25,124 540,507
13
102 33.1
14
10 EQ
2021 12 31
15
2022 13 1Q EQ
1Q EQ
2022 13 10 EQ

2022 24
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Mote usDs usDs
Current assets
Debtors and prepayments ] 2,120,894 4,033,538
Cash at bank and in hand 540,507 385018
2,661,401 4,418,556
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year g {18,989) {2,000}
Net current assets 2642412 4,416,556
Met Assets 2,642,412 4,416,556
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained eamings 1,802,442 3,666,556
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2642 412 4,416,556

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 14th April 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:

I':Il‘l ‘;11_//;__‘,_":’,‘—_ f — 'r-‘-- = S 4 "-f

Page 7
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Total profit and total comprehensive income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Motes uspDs usDs

Tumover 2,211,198 2.327 511
Gross profit 2,211,199 2,327 511
Administrative expenses {1,395,981) (F27,718)
Cther operating (losses) / gains {220,194} 155,759
Operating profit 4 595,024 1,755,552
Interest receivable and similar income Ga 138,999 86,735
Interast payable and similar charges b {8,167) {2,083)
Met interest receivable 130,832 84,652
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 725,856 1,840,204
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
‘Profit for the financial year 725,856 1,840,204
Cther comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 725,856 1,840,204

All results derive from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page &
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

pslodin R o gy

uUsD% usD$ uUsD$

Balance as at 1 January 2020 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Profit for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Balance as at 31 December 2020 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556
Balance as at 1 January 2021 750,000 3,666,558 4 416,556
Profit for the year - 725856 725,856
Total comprehensive income for the year - 125,856 725,856
Dividends - (2,500,000) (2,500, 000)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 750,000 1,892,412 2,642,412

The notes on pages 10to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page &
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2021

MNote 2021 2020
usD$ UsDs
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 12 2,663,656 (56 272)
Taxation paid - -
Net cash (used in} / generated from operating activities 2,663,656 {55,272}
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (8,167) (2.083)
Dividends paid (2,500,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities {2,508,167) {2.083)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 155,489 (57.355)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 385,018 442 373
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 540,507 385,018
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 540,507 385018
Total of cash and cash equivalents 540,507 385,018

The notes on pages 10to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page 9
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1 Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the "Company™) have
been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the

Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 1027).

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwsise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the histoncal cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also

requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company accounting
policies,

Page 10
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 Summary of significant accounting policies - (continuad)

(b) Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
aperational existence for the foreseeable future, and have adopted the going concem basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Although the company did not see top line growth in 2021 it was only marginally below the 2020
revenue level and maintained strong EBITDA & Profit before Tax. In addition to this the Company
continued to be cash generative, providing a positive cash flow to Group during the year, while
maintaining the Financial Position of the Company

The Company is part of the [Q-EQ Group (the "Group”) and overall debt funding is managed at a Group
level. The Group has a record of generating cash from operations, at the same time significant
investment is made to contribute to the long term growth and development of the Group. The majority
of the Group's revenues are recurring in nature and there are significant non-underying costs which
mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and project development costs, all of which are focused on
the long termn growth of the Group. The finance structure has been designed to accommodate this
growth by, rather than repayment, capitalising the interest on the converible preferred equity
certificates ("CPECs") allowing reinvestment into the Group.

The Group has demonstrated a solid resilience of the business model throughout the Covid-19
Pandemic and proven its ability to service customers and win new customers with its employees
wiorking from home.

The Directors have undertaken a review of the Company's trading forecast for the coming 12 months
from the date of signing of these financial statements, which shows that the Company is expected to
remain profitable and continue to be cash generative. Therefore, the Directors believe that the
Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

(c} Foreign currency

() Functional and presentational currancy
The Company's functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars (USD3).

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumrency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the underlying entities using
the spot exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each perod end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate, MNon-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and nen-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setement of transactions and from the
transliation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the total profit and total comprehensive income statement within ‘Foreign
exchange {loss)gain.’

Page 11
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continuad)
(d)} Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of services
rendered from the provision of collective investment scheme, net of any discounts and rebates allowed
by the Company, and company value added taxes, Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with
deferral of any cash received in advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over
the period to which it relates. Other revenue items relate to:

(i} Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis.

{#) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

{iif) Management recharge incomefexpense
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incumed byffrom
subsidiaries and other group companies durng the year,

i#) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Waluation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the Offering
Memoranda andfor Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases, these
management fees are subject to a minimum andfor an additional fixed fee also exists.

{v) Consultancy fees

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided by
the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case-by-case basis.

(e) Administrative expenses

Expenses are accounted for en an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

(f) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliabhy.

Page 12
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued )
(g) Impairment of nonfinancial assets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not camied at fair value are assessed to detemine
whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Ifthere is such an indication, the
recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the camying amount of the asset,

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Walue in use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax and interest cash flows obtainable as
a result of the assets continued use, The pretax and interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-
tax discount rate that represents the cumrent market nsk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

[f the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the camying amount, the carmying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess
iz recognised in the income statement,

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount but anly to the extent that the revised camying amount does
not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
total profit and total comprehensive income.

{h) Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

{f) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts due from group undertakings are initially recognised at the
transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or are seitled, or (b} substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
asset are transferred to another party or (¢) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to anaother party who has the practical ability to
unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

{ii) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings and other payables are initialhy
recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments (net of directly attributable
issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest. Issue costs are recognised in the income
statement gver the term of the debt on an effective interest rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Page 13
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued )
(i) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecushy.

(j) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity 2s a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

(k) Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distnbutions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the periad in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the
stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

(I} Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the
directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the
Company financial statements

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histonical expenience and cther
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carmying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i} Provisions for bad dabis and Accrued come

The Company recognises trade debtors and accrued income at recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amount of trade debtors and accrued income is assessed on an individual basis using the judgement of
management to assess the recoverable value of these assets and quantify the level of provisioning
which takes into account an assessment of the customer's current and historic financial position, age
profile of accrued income and outstanding debt and assessment of historical recovery rates,

Page 14
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 Operating profit

Cperating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:
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2021 2020
usDs UsDs
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (220,194) 165,759

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 the audit fee of the Company was paid by [Q EQ
Group Management (Isle of Man) Limited, a related entity under common contral.

5 Employees and Directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation is
borne by other companies related by commoen control, primarily |Q EQ Bermuda Limited and 12 EQ
Management (Jersey) Limited and is therefore not disclosed in these financial statements,

6 Met interest expense

{a) Interest received and similar income

20 2020
usDs LSD3
Bank interest receivable 2 13
Interest on intercompany loan 138,997 86,722
Total interest receivable and similar income 138,999 86,735
(b} Interest payable and similar charges
201 2020
usps UsSDS
Cther (8,167) (2,083)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (8,167) (2,083)
(c) Met interest expense
2021 2020
UsDs UsSDS
Interest receivable and similar income 138,999 86,735
Interest payable and similar charges (B,167) (2,083)
Met interest income 130,832 B4 652

Page 15
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

7 Income Tax
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Under current Bemuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either
income or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in

Bermuda exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

g Debtors and prepayments 2021 2020
UsDS USDS

Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 27672 36,357
Accrued income 188 967 195,878
Amounts owed by related parties 1,887 665 3,784,713
Prepayments 6,590 6,590
2,120,854 4,033,538

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand. Any group undertakings over €1 million bears interest at a rate of 5% per

annum.
| Creditors 2021 2020
UsDs UsSDS
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed to related parties (2,000 (2,000)
Accruals {16,989) -
At 31 December (18,989) (2,000)

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment

and are repayable on demand.
10 Financial instruments

The company has the following financial instruments:

2021 20 2020 2020
UsDs LISDS USDS USDS
Financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost
Trade debtors 188,967 36,357
Cther receivables 2,086,632 3,980,581
Cash and cash equivalents 540,507 385.018
2816106 4,411 966
Page 16
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10  Financial instruments (continued)

2021 20 2020 2020
usDs USDs uspDs usDs

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Amounts owed to related

parties (18,989) (2,000)
(18,989) (2,000)
11 Share capital 201 2020
USDS LUSDS
Authorised
1,000,000 common shares of USDS1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid
750,000 commaon shares of USDS1 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one class of share capttal which caries no right to fixed income.

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2021 2020
UsDs UsD3
Profit for the financial year 725,856 1,840,204
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 8,167 2.083
Operating profit 734023 1,842,287
Working capital movements:
{Increase)Decrease in debtors and prepayments 1,692 450 {1,743 ,800)
Increase f{Decrease) in payables 16989 2,000
Foreign exchange movement 220,194 {155,759}
Cash flow from operating activities 2,663 656 155,272)
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
01/01/2021 202 movements 31212021
Cash at bank 385.018 130,365 25124 540,507
Total 385,018 130,365 25124 540,507
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

13

14

15

Related party transactions

Cther than note 5, transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries related by commaen control are not
disclosed as the Company has taken advantage of the exemplion in section 33.1A of FRS 102,

Controlling parties

Fallowing the restructure of the group, the Company’s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group
Haldeo (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey.

As at 31 December 2021, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consclidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity).

Events after the end of the reporting period

On 13 January 2022, FPCI Astorg \W's shareholding in the I1Q-EQ Group was transferred to 1 EQ Fund
SCSpa French closed ended collective investment scheme in which no individual investor holds a
controlling interest. From 13 January 2022 IQEQ Fund SCSp is considered collectively by the Board of

Managers ta be the ultimate controlling party.

On 24 February 2022, Russia invaded Ukraine. As a result of the conflict and sanctions imposed an
Russia and Belarus, the Group have undertaken a review of its exposure to Ukraine, Russia and
Belarus nexus clients. Following this detailed review, the Directors are of the opinion that the financial
exposure is not materal to the Company,
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Intertrust SPV Cayman Limited

2022 500,300 7,245

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2022 10 4,000 1,506 240
2022 836 1,600
2022 875 5,000
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2022, the statements
of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and financial highlights for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financia statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at May 31, 2022, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

The Series Trust may translate these financia statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We have not
been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandlation. In the event of any inconsistencies between the English
and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with US
GAAP, and for such interna control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG
November 7, 2022
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD (the “Series Trust”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2022, the statements
of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and financial highlights for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financia statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at May 31, 2022, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

The Series Trust may translate these financia statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We have not
been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandlation. In the event of any inconsistencies between the English
and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with US
GAAP, and for such interna control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

KPMG
November 7, 2022
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Opinion
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In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the ‘ company’):
give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the
year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland; and
have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the statement of comprehensive income;
the balance sheet;
the statement of changes in equity;
the cash flow statement; and
therelated notes 1 to 15.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicablein the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financia Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’S) Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, other than the financia
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's

website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that:
had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
do not have adirect effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within
the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our

specific procedures performed to address them are described below:
The vauation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and therefore there is
potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In response, we tested controls regarding the
valuation of accrued income for design and implementation as well as substantive tests of detail. Our
substabtive testing undertaken, on a sample basis, compared management’s estimate of recoverable values
to amounts billed and recovered post year-end, challenged management on recoverable values by
assessing historic billing and recovery rates based on our understanding of the specific customer
circumstances.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
reviewing financia statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;
enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potentia litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Use of our report
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This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermudian

Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's directors those
matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed in this letter to) state to them in an independent auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for our reports, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP
St Peter Port
14 April 2022
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2021, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may tranglate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with US GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enabl e the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 1, 2021
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD (the “ Series Trust”), a
series trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2021, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may tranglate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with US GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enabl e the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 1, 2021
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